
Page 1 of 9 

 

 
 

GREENHEAD COLLEGE CORPORATION 

Minutes of the Quality & Standards Committee 
Monday 28 April 2025, 4.30pm 

Held in G17, Greenhead College 

Governors present: 
Darinder Shokar; Ed Wynn; Heather Roebuck; Mark Howells (via 
Teams); Richard Armstrong (Chair); Samim Mitha; Stuart Irving 

In attendance 
James Reevell (VP); Usman Anwar (VP); Claire Parr (AP); 
Magdaline Glynn (AP); Mark Mitchell (AP); Tom Rowley (AP); 
Sharon Roper (Clerk) 

Apologies: Jeanette Palmer; Liz Bowen; Mo Bunter  

Governor Attendance: 70% attendance 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

 
1. Welcome, 
apologies 
 

 
RAR welcomed participants.  
Apologies as above. 
 

 
 

 
2. Declarations 
 

 
No declarations of pecuniary/prejudicial interest. 
 

 
 

 
3. Minutes 27/1/25  
 

 
3.1 Minutes 27/1/25, previously circulated, approved by 
Committee & signed off by Chair; Clerk to file.  
 
3.2 Matters arising action log: 
1. (22/1/24 Min 12.3, Action 2) RAR suggested Simon 
Reeve should be invited to GC to talk to students. TRO said 
there is no update, and this will be carried forward into 
summer term.  
2. (10/6/24 Min 4.14, Action 4) SMI volunteered to help with 
ethnic minority groups who have underperformed in recent 
years. MMI said there is a project underway concentrating 
on improving this cohort’s performance. RAR asked that 
any updates are shared with SMI.  
3. (10/6/24 Min 11.2, Action 5) RAR to speak to new Chair 
at local college – when Chair appointed RAR will contact 
them.  
4. (7/10/24 Min 7.1, Action 9) JPA asked that the AI Policy 
is referenced in the Online Safety Policy when it is 
produced. JRL said an AI Position Statement is in place and 
is held in the policies central record. RAR asked for the 
position statement to be shared with Q&S members, it will 
be shared with the Corporation Board members and 
discussed at Strategy Day 7/5/25. 
5. (27/1/25 Mins 6.6 & 6.8, Actions 14 & 15) Costed 
curriculum – these actions will be covered at Strategy Day 

 
 
Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
TRO/MMI 
 
 
 
 
TRO/MMI 
 
 
RAR 
 
 
 
 
 
 
JRL 
 
 



Page 2 of 9 

7/5/25.  
6. (27/1/25 Min 6.9, Action 16) RAR asked that Q&S 
members are provided with information about the 
curriculum offer in other establishments, the quality of our 
offer, how subjects are performing and their value-added 
ALPS. MBR asked (via the action log) what range of 
colleges do governors want data from – RAR said from 
local competitors. Are any GC departments struggling to 
recruit because of the offer provided elsewhere.  
RAR confirmed the information is required for departments 
with low recruitment only. This will be covered at Strategy 
Day. 
7. (27/1/25 Min 8, Action 18) NEU misinformation reported 
the current (pay) offer does not include government 
investment of £50 million – this is untrue and MBR will issue 
a communication to GC staff. This action is proposed to 
close, although RAR said the pay review body has 
recommended 4% for this year and the unions may take 
further action if this is not paid.  
 
Q&S committee members approved closure of the actions: 
1-6-8-11-18-19-20-21 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Clerk 

 
4. Progress on 
KPIs – In year 
data analysis 

 
4. MMI summarised the In-year data Analysis: 
 
1. MMI said the data is produced from A2 mock results and 
monitoring and A1 monitoring.  
2. The mock grades are derived from one paper (A Levels 
are three exams) so should be treated with caution and 
treated as a learning exercise.  
Staff were asked for mock grades and monitoring grades 
which are their predictions.  
3. There are 157 predicted U grades from mock results, 
there were 121 U grade results last year.  
Departments are working with these students to try and 
improve the outcomes.   
4. The monitoring is forecasting 32 U grades.  
The monitoring is forecasting high grades A* – B of 67%, 
this is higher than last year.  
Last year the Spring monitoring figure was accurate, the 
monitoring figure for high grades was 65.6% and the A 
Level high grade results were 64.5%.  
5. UAN said the cohort of 1353 A2 students is bigger this 
year.   
6. EWY asked if CLT feel the data is right and will reflect the 
A Level results this year – MMI said there has been a lot of 
work undertaken with underperforming cohorts and around 
attendance.  
Attendance has a significant impact on outcomes, and 
stricter attendance measures have been implemented this 
year.  
TRO said that students who are causing concern have 
already been identified, and intervention strategies are used 
with some students. There have not been many surprises in 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 3 of 9 

the mock results.   
7. MMI said feedback from teachers about A1s is that they 
are a strong cohort and this is reflected in the January 
monitoring data.  
A1 monitoring A*-B at 67.6% is the highest for several 
years. 
A1s completed assessments before Easter, the results will 
be available for the next Q&S meeting 9/6/25. 
The A1 cohort attendance is also good. 
8. RAR said the in-year data helps inform governor 
decisions when setting targets at the beginning of the 
academic year.    
9. SMI asked if different strategies have been used with A1 
students this year – following a student reengagement 
review, interventions are implemented earlier in the 
academic year from October onwards. 
Strategies for students predicted with B, C and D grades 
include motivation to adopt good study habits and using 
VESPA training.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TRO/MMI 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
5. Library 
modernisation 

 
JRL gave a verbal update about the relocation of the Library 
and its modernisation. 
 
JRL said there are extensive designs, making the best use 
of the space and reflecting how students want to use the 
new library.   
The library staff are involved, and the three main 
considerations are:  
- How students engage with library resources.  
- There is a core of 1000 books that are regularly used 
(there are 17,000 books in the library). 
- The library subscribes to journals and periodicals; how 
students access these is being looked at.  
The current library is configured with individual study 
spaces; the new library will have different seating options 
and students will be asked their opinions on the designs.  
MMI said there will be an option for students to borrow fully 
charged laptops from the new library, and there will be a big 
reduction in physical books and DVDs. 
 
1. RAR asked if GC is moving towards students accessing 
books electronically – MMI said one of the issues with this 
is cost. He said moving journals and periodicals online 
would be a big subscription increase, and he will ask for 
ideas from other colleges.  
JRL said GC is heading in an electronic direction, and 
costings are being worked through.  
UAN said another limiting factor is accessibility, with some 
students without internet access and laptops at home. 
2. RAR asked if students will be able to access library 
services from the onsite study rooms without physically 
going to the library. JRL said this can be explored.   
3. JRL said the next stage is to decide about the resources 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 4 of 9 

which are not extensively used and the digital costs. Course 
texts are critical and must be provided.  
EWY asked that necessary texts are made available to 
every student that needs them.  
4. EWY has experience of businesses who offer an E-
Library service.   
MMI said that a lot of subjects do have digital books. 
JRL said that subjects do provide resources that student 
need as part of their curriculum offer, and GC will try to 
enrich this and provide further learning. 
5. MMI will talk to NorVIC colleges as they might have 
systems in place or be interested in joining together to 
increase purchasing power for online subscriptions etc.   
6. RAR said electronic library services will prepare the 
students for university life. 
7. SIR asked about library services which give access to 
other organisation’s library resources and online platforms – 
TRO said GC has a link to Huddersfield University library 
resources which students can access.   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
MMI 

 
6. Student Voice 

 
MMI summarised Student Voice – A1 survey results, 
previously circulated.  
 
1. This is a mid-year temperature test of A1 students. 
2. The survey includes questions about the quality of 
student experience and bridging resources provided before 
they start at GC.  
3. Data provided is compared to previous year’s results. 
4. Following Q&S members asking for changes to the 
wording of the question about digital resources used, 
satisfaction from students has increased.   
5. RAR asked if the A1 cohort expected more from GC than 
has been met because where the results differ to previous 
years the results are slightly more negative. MMI said the 
data is an average of all subjects, individual differences are 
discussed with heads of curriculum.  
6. ‘Frequent and detailed feedback of work’ results were 
lower in Government and Politics and Statistics.  
TRO gave context to this, the Government and Politics HoD 
had been absent for several months and also strike days 
have affected curriculum delivery.  
7. MMI said in the mid-year survey ‘opportunities beyond 
the classroom’ is often a lower result because students 
have not experienced Step Into week, Step Into is in June.   
8. Core Maths and English Literature have lower results in 
digital resources; it might be that all the necessary 
information is included in their resource packs.  
RAR said students are digitally aware and probably prefer 
accessible electronic options and asked for trends in results 
to be followed up with investment to meet student 
expectation.  
JRL said there is a college digital strategy which will be 
discussed at Strategy Day. Focus will continue on how 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 5 of 9 

students get information and their access to devices.    
9. 85% of students found bridging work set over the 
summer useful. Law results were that 68% found it useful. 
Bridging work from all subjects will be available so 
comparisons and improvements can be made.   
10. Quality of teaching is a strong result across all subjects. 
11. EWY asked about the lower results this year and gave 
examples of not enough homework and the pace of lessons 
and asked if the strong A1 cohort have different 
expectations. MMI said he ran a focus group with Further 
Maths students, their feedback included the pace of their 
Physics lesson is too slow, but this is a strong group of 
student who are taking four A Levels. Lessons have to be 
appropriate for all students, and each department and 
teacher can see their own feedback and will respond 
accordingly.   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
7. UCAS monthly 
key statistics 
report 2025 

 
7. UAN summarised the UCAS monthly key statistics report 
2025.  
 
1285 applications have been submitted to UCAS this year. 
Last year there were 1192, but it is a larger cohort this year. 
The deadline for students to reply to offers is on 5/6/25.  
The data in the report is up to 1/4/25. 
Geographically: 538 students have applied to Leeds, 461 to 
Manchester and 424 to Huddersfield.  
Most offers have come from Huddersfield, Leeds and 
Newcastle Universities.  
68 students have received zero offers. 
UAN will present a further UCAS update at the next Q&S 
meeting on 9/6/25.   
There have been 24 Oxbridge offers, 12 from Cambridge 
and 12 from Oxford. 
 
1. EWY asked what Offer Rate (Choice Level) refers to.  
UAN confirmed that Offer Rate (Applicant Level) is the 
number of students who have received at least one offer.  
Offer Rate (Choice Level) – there have been 6157 choices 
from GC applicants (the students can make five choices 
each), 73% - 4595 have received an offer.    
2. RAR asked about the 68 students who have not had any 
offers.  
UAN said they might be pursuing apprenticeships, can use 
the clearing service to secure a university place or be taking 
a gap year. Careers advice will be offered to these 
students.  
TRO said that in their first year all students are encouraged 
to register with UCAS irrespective of them planning to go to 
university. 
3. RAR asked if there are any particular demographics of 
the 68 students that have received zero offers.  
UAN asked for clarification of what is being asked – RAR 
gave an example of students receiving free college meals.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
UAN 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
UAN 
 
 



Page 6 of 9 

4. HRO asked if zero offers mean students have submitted 
an application but not received an offer. UAN will look into 
this.  
UAN said that some students apply for medicine and 
dentistry who do not have good enough grades. GC 
encourages them not to apply but these students often 
apply because of parental pressure.  
RAR said that students can enhance their chances of 
studying medicine and dentistry by volunteering in the 
health service, applying for medicine in the military, 
applying in the areas they live or applying for certain areas 
on the northwest or east coasts.  
5. RAR asked who provider mission groups are, including 
MillionPlus and University Alliance – MillionPlus is a group 
of universities, and include some of the old polytechnics.  
6. SIR asked for data for top performing students who 
decide not to go to university and choose apprenticeships 
instead. 
7. RAR noted this data has not been shared with governors 
before and thanked UAN for sharing it.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
UAN 

 
8. Brief verbal 
updates 

 
8.1 MGN and CPA gave verbal updates on Student Support 
and Welfare. 
 
1. CPA said that the government have funded Young 
Drivers workshops across colleges, and this has been 
piloted with a group of GC students. Students gave positive 
feedback, and elements of the workshop will be added into 
the tutorial programme. 
2. Family Action Charity will provide fifty GC students with 
Educational Grants of up to £300 for laptops, phones, 
travel, college books or equipment. Fifty students have 
been identified and the applications for the grants are 
underway.  
3. There are currently seven students at GC who are 
officially classed as high needs students. This year over 30 
high needs students have applied to GC, and 26 applicants 
with an EHCP in place have been offered a place. This will 
be a big increase to the current cohort 
SMI asked if high needs students have to meet the same 
entry criteria as other students – yes, they do.  
CPA said there is an increase in applications from high 
needs students from outside the local area and less from 
Kirklees.  
RAR asked if this is because Kirklees have a backlog of 
EHCP assessments -  this will be a contributing factor.  
CPA said that following the change of government the 
EHCP green paper has stopped.  
HRO asked if additional resources are required to cope with 
increased high needs students next year – yes it will, this is 
being discussed by CLT. Additional funding will be available 
for these students, but the funding amounts are unknown.  
GC will try to replicate the support they received at high 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 7 of 9 

school.  
HRO asked about starting the recruitment process when 
enrolment and funding is unknown. CPA said that this 
process involves guess work.    
SIR asked if students enrol without EHCP when they should 
probably have one. Yes, but EHCP stops when students 
move to higher education. It takes so long to get EHCP that 
GC concentrates on the impact of teaching and learning 
and how the students can be helped.  
CPA said that there are a lot of high needs students without 
EHCP, but they all get the same level of support.  
RAR noted that the college ALS team do an excellent job 
supporting students.   
4. MGN gave an update that the Water Street Fund have 
finalised grants totalling £4200 for GC students to help them 
progress their education. The Fund have said that this will 
continue next year.  
5. A1 student progress assessment results will go live to 
students and parents/carers on 1/5/25. Communications 
sent will signpost available support and explain how 
progress can be tracked and monitored via Cedar. 
6. Following the recent supreme court ruling about gender, 
an update has been released about the practical 
implications for the college; students who are trans gender 
must not use the toilets of the gender they subscribe to. 
Existing trans gender students at GC use the single use 
toilets and this will be communicated to new students during 
enrolment.  
7. HRO asked if students receiving the Water Street grants 
might also be the same students identified to apply for the 
Family Action grants – the same students can potentially 
get both grants. HRO and RAR asked for no overlap unless 
there is a good reason for a student to be awarded both 
grants, CPA will check this.  
 
8.2 MMI and TRO gave a verbal update on Quality of 
Education. 
 
1. TRO said that A2 mocks, and monitoring is complete. For 
underperforming students coaching, interventions, focus on 
attendance and contracts are in place.  
2. Coursework marks have been released 28/4/25 for non-
examined assessments, this allows for an appeal process 
for students before the marks are sent to the exam boards 
in May.   
3. A Level exams have started and continue until 24/6/25. 
4. CLT and Careers will pick up A1 students who are at risk 
of not passing their A Level courses and this will be 
discussed at students/parents evening on 14/5/25.  
RAR asked if there are options for students to repeat their 
A1 year – there are if this is appropriate.  
5. Planning is underway for next year, staff will be recruited 
for Art, Maths, Business, Economics, Psychology and 
Chemistry.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CPA 



Page 8 of 9 

RAR asked if strong applications have been received for the 
advertised jobs – there have been plenty of strong 
applications. JRL said there has been an increase of job 
applications from people who currently work at private 
schools.  
6. CPD planning for next year will include an increased 
focus on SEND in response to the larger high need student 
applications.  
RAR asked if increased ALS staffing will be included in the 
draft budget – it will.  
7. MMI said GC has won the Sixth Form College of the Year 
Educate North award. Big contributors to the win were the 
Believe and Achieve programme that raises aspirations of 
students and the Step Into programme.  
RAR formally congratulated GC staff on behalf of the 
governors.  
8. DSH asked how many A1 students are on the at-risk list 
– the data is currently being analysed, TRO anticipates 
approximately twenty students. A holistic overview is taken 
in addition to assessment results.   
DSH asked if interventions have taken place in the past – 
they have, it is earlier this year so that students and parents 
have more time to explore alternative options if appropriate.  
 
8.3 TRO and MMI gave a verbal update on the Skills 
Agenda: 
 
1. The Ofsted result was a strong contribution to Skills. TRO 
thanked governors for their contribution to the result.  
This was a tough inspection and was hard fought with 
contributions from Kirklees and C&K Careers.  
2. Planning is underway for Step Into week which starts on 
23/6/25 and ends with a Careers Fair at the college. 
3. TRO was invited to the Huddersfield University Kirklees 
Top 100 Company’s event and made good contacts 
including alumni.  
4. WYCA have asked GC to complete a survey to contribute 
to the next LSIP update, this contribution is encouraged by 
Ofsted.  
5. Following the Ofsted result other colleges have contacted 
GC for best practice and GC benefitted from their college 
network while preparing for the inspection. 
  

 
9. Risk Summary 
and Hirst Risk 
Register 

 
Risk summary and Hirst Risk Register, previously 
circulated.  
 
1. RAR asked if DfE have confirmed a firm handover date 
for the new build – the risk register states that the requested 
end date should be no later than 22nd August, SWA is 
continuing to work on this.   
RAR said that Board intervention is required if there will be 
an impact on next academic year. 
2. EWY asked that the transport risk is increased because 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 9 of 9 

Huddersfield train station will close for a month from the end 
of August to September, and Q&S must keep oversight of 
this risk. This is a critical time for the college as it covers 
enrolment and the first few weeks of term.  
UAN said that a meeting is scheduled with the project 
manager from Network Rail next week.  
RAR asked for communication to new and existing students 
and parents/carers in advance so that alternative 
arrangements can be made.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
UAN/JRL 
 

 
10. Policies to 
review 

 
10. Prevention of Sexual Harassment Policy  
 
The policy information says it was approved by Corporation 
in January 2025, the Clerk confirmed that it has not been 
sent to Corporation for approval in 2025.   
JRL said the policy has been rewritten because of the 
significant changes made to the sexual harassment 
legislation in 2024.  
EWY asked why the Sexual Harassment Policy is a 
separate policy to the Bullying and Harassment policy.  
EWY asked if there should be a section about expected 
behaviour of students.  
RAR asked if this policy can be combined with existing 
policies. 
HRO asked why the college did not previously have a 
Sexual Harassment Policy.  
HRO asked if the Bullying and Harassment Policy covers 
students, employees and third parties.  
TRO said that he will raise these questions with JRA at the 
next CLT meeting.  
RAR said that governors can access GC policies – the 
Clerk will share a link.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
JRA 
 
TRO 
 
Clerk 

 
11. Any other 
business 

 
MHO asked if it is a conflict of interest to introduce a 
colleague from Sir John Deans College to the GC Head of 
Physics – RAR reassured him this is not a conflict of 
interest.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

  
12. Confidentiality 

 
Nothing identified. 

 

 
13. Date next 
meeting 
 

 
Next Q&S, Mon 9 June 25, 4.30pm. 

 
Govs note 

 

Minutes prepared by Sharon Roper (Clerk to the Corporation) on 3/6/25 
 

Approved & signed by Heather Roebuck, Vice Chair, on 9/6/25 


